

Policy on District Organization

(Formerly known as District Constitution)

Each district of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada which is not incorporated shall be governed by this policy. The governing documents of incorporated districts shall reflect the provisions of this policy to the extent possible in keeping with the appropriate provincial legislation.

Preamble

District organization in The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada is designed to help churches grow; to provide for regional relationships; and to give oversight to the licensing, ordination, and leadership of its official workers.

While the local assembly is the primary visible form of the church, relationships beyond the congregation are essential if the local church is to fulfill its function in the fellowship, evangelism, church development, extension, and world missions.

Therefore, The Christian and Missionary Alliance churches of this district are united in governance, fellowship, and service in order to promote unity of faith in the fullness of Jesus Christ as Saviour, Sanctifier, Healer, and Coming King, and to facilitate the spread of the Gospel in Canada and globally under the guidance and enabling of the Holy Spirit.

Article 1 – Name

This District shall be known as the _____ District of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada. Its boundaries are defined by the Board of Directors of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada.

Article 2 – Organization and Government

The organization of this district shall be in harmony with the provisions outlined in the Manual of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada and shall include all member churches, official workers, and ministries of The Christian and Missionary Alliance within this district, except such as may be under the immediate control of the Board of Directors of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada.

2.1. District Conference

The District Conference shall constitute the legislative body of the district. The district superintendent shall be the chair or shall appoint the chair. Its legislation shall be limited to district affairs and in no case shall such legislation be in conflict with the actions of the General Assembly. The district conference may provide a voice into actions contemplated by General Assembly wherein the district may be unduly impacted by such action. One-third of registered accredited voting delegates shall constitute a quorum. It shall meet biennially and shall be comprised of the following:

2.1.1. Accredited Voting Delegates

The District Executive Committee shall establish the process by which the credentials of voting delegates are confirmed.

- a) Officers and official workers of the district.

b) Local church delegates:

- i. Churches that have adopted the Local Church Constitution of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada may be represented at district conference by two voting lay delegates appointed by the board of elders. If the active membership is 150 or more, another voting lay delegate may be sent for each additional 100 members, or fraction thereof.
- ii. Churches that have adopted the Constitution for Developing Churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada may be represented at district conference by one voting lay delegate appointed by the district superintendent after consultation with the Advisory Committee.

c) Lay members of the district executive committee.

d) Lay leaders of district ministries appointed by the district executive committee.

e) Members of the Board of Directors of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada residing in the district

f) International workers of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada on home assignment residing in the District.

g) A representative of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada appointed by the President.

h) A representative of each Official School (Post-secondary) of The Christian and Missionary Alliance appointed by the chief officer of that institution.

i) Official workers, licensed by the President, residing in the district.

2.1.2. Corresponding Delegates

Members of member churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada visiting district conference may be admitted as corresponding delegates. Corresponding delegates shall not have the right to vote.

2.2. District Executive Committee

The administrative work of the district shall be committed to the district executive committee. . This committee shall consist of the officers of the district and such other members as shall be elected by district conference. As far as possible, they shall represent the diversity of the district. . The District Superintendent shall serve as chair or appoint the chair.

Persons shall not vote on any matter which may directly or indirectly result in financial benefit to them, whether such benefit be in the nature of salary or other payment.

2.3. Officers

The officers of the district shall consist of the district superintendent, the chair, the secretary, the treasurer and others as specified in the district bylaws.

2.3.1. District Superintendent

The district superintendent shall be the recognized head of the entire work of the district and shall be a member ex officio of all district committees

2.3.2. Chair

The chair or an appointee of the chair shall preside at regular and special meetings of the district executive committee.

2.3.3. District Secretary

The district secretary shall be responsible for the minutes of the district conference and the minutes of all meetings of the district executive committee, and shall perform all other duties pertaining to the office or assigned by the district executive committee.

2.3.4. District Treasurer

The district treasurer shall oversee the financial policies and practices of the district and shall report to the district executive committee and the district conference regarding the financial affairs of the district. The Treasurer shall chair the audit committee of the district.

2.4. Elections/Appointments

2.4.1. Committee on Nominations

The district committee on nominations shall be composed of three members who shall be elected by the district conference two years before the conference at which they will report, plus three other members appointed by the district executive committee following the election. The district executive committee shall appoint the chair, vice chair and secretary from among the elected and appointed members.

2.4.2. District Superintendent

The district superintendent shall be elected by district conference. The term of office shall be four years, beginning August 1 following the election with eligibility for a maximum of three consecutive elected terms of office. Prior to the completion of each term, a formal evaluation of the district superintendent's ministry shall be conducted under the supervision of the President of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada, in consultation with the district executive committee. A written report of the formal evaluation and the criteria used shall be submitted to the committee on nominations.

The election of the district superintendent shall be in accordance with the Policy on Process for Electing District Superintendents.

A person who is nominated for the position of District Superintendent but who is not an official worker in the respective District is to be allowed a vote in the election of the District Superintendent.

In the event that a decision cannot be reached by district conference or in the event that the office of the district superintendent becomes vacant for any reason, the President of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada, in consultation with the district executive committee and the Board of Directors, shall appoint a district superintendent until the office has been filled by election at the district conference.

2.4.3. District Executive Committee

The district executive committee shall be elected by district conference to terms as specified in the district bylaws.

2.4.4. General Assembly Committee on Nominations

District conference shall elect two members to serve on the committee on nominations at the next biennial General Assembly. In the event that an elected member is not able to serve, the district executive committee shall appoint a replacement to serve on this committee ensuring that, as far as possible, any lay nominee who cannot serve is replaced by a lay delegate.

2.5. Licensing Committee and Ordaining Council

The district executive committee shall appoint licensing committee(s) and ordaining council(s) for the district.

The licensing committee shall examine and approve candidates for the official workers license in accordance with the licensing policy. All licenses approved shall be issued by the district superintendent.

The ordaining council shall examine and approve for ordination qualified candidates for the Christian ministry in accordance with the ordination policy of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada.

2.6. Property

The district may acquire, own, improve, mortgage, hypothecate, pledge, encumber, exchange, dispose of, sell, convey, or otherwise deal with property, real and personal, for district or local church purposes, in conformity with the laws of the province or territory in which the property is situated. The district executive committee is empowered to act as its agent in all matters pertaining to property real and personal.

The district may empower any two of its officers to release a reversionary or other contingent interest in the real property of a local church in the event of sale of church real property, or to subordinate such interest to a mortgage, when it is in the best interest of both the church and the district.

Where special conditions warrant, the district executive committee may permit an incorporated member church to own property and hold the title thereto. In such circumstances, the corporate documents shall contain a clause that identifies the district as the recipient of the assets of the church should the church cease to exist or cease to be subject to the Manual which includes the Statement of Faith of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada.

Should the district cease to exist as a corporate body, or cease to be subject to the purposes, usages, doctrines, and teachings of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada, then all property, appurtenances, and effects then owned or held by the district shall inure to the benefit of and become the property of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada as incorporated under the laws of the Government of Canada or another Alliance District as may be required by law.

2.7. Member Churches

A member church of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada (C&MA) shall be established when an association of people who have voted to become a member church of the C&MA and to abide by the governing documents of the C&MA has been accepted as a member church by the district executive committee of the district within which the church is located.

Member churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada that are fully organized shall be governed by the local church constitution. The local church may adopt additional bylaws, policies and regulations which govern the local church but in no case shall such bylaws, policies and regulations contradict the provisions of the local church constitution.

Member churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada which have fewer than fifteen (15) members or which are not yet fully organized shall be governed by the constitution for developing churches.

The developing church may become fully organized and adopt the local church constitution upon approval of the district superintendent.

Member churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada that are incorporated shall be governed by the incorporating documents and corporate bylaws approved by the district executive committee. The incorporating documents, corporate bylaws and policies of incorporated churches shall conform to the provisions of the local church constitution.

A non-Alliance church which agrees to abide by the conditions approved by the Board of Directors of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada may become affiliated with The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada upon approval of the district executive committee of the district within which the church is located. Affiliated churches are not member churches of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada and consequently are not represented at district conference or General Assembly by lay delegates.

Gatherings of believers without the probable potential of becoming organized churches, but desiring to align themselves with the Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada, shall be governed as approved by the district executive committee.

2.8. Auxiliary District Ministries

District proposals for major capital projects other than church building programs shall be approved by the district executive committee unless the carrying costs of any single project exceeds 20% of a district's annual gross income for the immediately preceding financial year in which case approval will be required by the Board of Directors of The Christian and Missionary Alliance in Canada.

2.9. By-laws

District by-laws, not in conflict with the provisions of this policy, may be adopted by the district conference by a majority vote.

2.10. Amendments

This policy may be amended by a two-thirds vote at any regular business session of General Assembly, written notice having been given prior to General Assembly.

Adopted – General Assembly 1984
Amended – General Assembly 2008
Amended - General Assembly 2016